
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

FEBRUARY 19, 2019 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
MARYANN HALLSTEIN 
 
1. Call to Order Regular City Council Work Session: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of February 5, 2019 City Council Meeting (3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (26) 

 Claims   $    46,766.17 
 Payroll   $      9,391.19 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,399.68 
 Other Claims   $      2,576.21 
 Total Claims     $    62,133.25 

 
4. Missy Thompson – Hanover Youth Ball 

 
5. Medium Duty Truck Replacement (67) 
 
6. Reports 

 
7. Adjournment 

1



 
 
 

 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  February 14, 2019 
 
Re:  Review of February 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: See enclosed consent agenda. 

a. Approve Minutes of February 5, 2019 City Council Meeting (3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (26) 

 Claims   $    46,766.17 
 Payroll   $      9,391.19 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,399.68 
 Other Claims   $      2,576.21 
 Total Claims     $    62,133.25 

 
4. Missy Thompson – Hanover Youth Ball 

 
5. Medium Duty Truck Replacement (67) 

 
6. Reports 
 
7. Adjournment 

2



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FEBRUARY 5, 2019 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, February 5, 2019, to order at 7:03 
pm. Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Jim Zajicek and MaryAnn 
Hallstein.  Also present were City Administrator Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Jason 
Doboszenski, City Attorney Jay Squires, City Engineer Justin Messner, City Planner Cindy Nash 
and Administrative Assistant Amy L. Biren.  Coucilor Doug Hammerseng is absent.  Many quests 
were present. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the February 5, 2019, agenda as presented, seconded by 
Hallstein.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hallstein inquired whether or not the approval of the waste hauler licenses should be removed 
from the Consent Agenda as there are complaints regarding one of the new waste haulers.  
Curbside has recently become one of Hanover’s waste haulers and there have been complaints 
against them even though there is a positive rating on the Better Business Bureau’s website.  Hagen 
stated he had consulted with City Attorney Squires.  The complaints received to date would not 
warrant a denial of a license. 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the consent agenda as presented, seconded by Warpula. 

a. Approve Minutes of January 15, 2019,  City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $    34,788.75 
 Payroll   $      9,708.78 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,548.75 
 Other Claims  $      2,640.81 
 Total Claims     $    50,687.09 

c. Res No 02-05-19-06 - Approving 2019 Waste Hauler Licenses 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 
Kauffman acknowledged the large audience and their desire to give input on the various agenda 
items.  He requested that when audience members were recognized, they keep their statement to 
two (2) minutes or under and to avoid repeating the same statement by various people.  He said he 
would like to keep this efficient as there is a long agenda.  Kauffman said that this is the best time 
to speak, particularly if it was on the topic of the Hanover Cove Development. 
 
Sara Williams, 364 River Road NE:  She spoke to the proposed development by Paxmar, Hanover 
Cove.  She thanked the Council for the work they do and for listening to resident concerns.  
Williams stated that the decision made by the Planning Commission last week is very important 
and that the Commission put much work into making that decision.  She asked that the Council 
carefully consider how the proposed development would impact the City and how the City would 
be changed.  She encouraged the Council to hold this developer to the same standards of previous 
developers have followed. 
 
Public Hearings: 

3



None 
 
Unfinished Business: 
 Res No 02-05-19-07 - Approving Additional 2019 Appointments 
Zajicek said that the four individuals that were interested in the open seat on Park Board attended 
the last Park Board meeting and shared their interests about being on the Board.  He said that all 
four candidates were suited for the position, and that Leslie Murphy is recommended for 
appointment. 
 
Hagen informed the Council that the newly created Wright County Transportation Advisory 
Committee is in need of a City representative.  The appointment would be for a two-year term and 
would meet quarterly to give recommendations.  Warpula volunteered to be the City 
representative. 
 
MOTION by Zajicek to approve the additional appointments to the Park Board and the Wright 
County Transportation Advisory Committee, seconded by Hallstein.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 Council Meeting Date Change 
Hagen reminded Council that it had been requested that the day of the week for Council meetings 
and work sessions be investigated.  Warpula stated that based on the availability of consultants 
and the conflict with the Planning Commission, the day of the week should stay the same, but that 
the time be changed for the work session so that it matched the Council meeting start time of 7 
pm.  Zajicek agreed with the time change suggestion.  Hagen stated the new start time would have 
to be changed through an ordinance amendment and that process would be started as soon as 
possible. 
 
New Business: 
 Concept Plan - River Town Villas 
 Josh Jacobs, Wits Reality and Wits Land Company; Tim Bellin, Bellin Construction; and Paul 
Kangas, Loucks Associates, presented PowerPoint slides explaining the concept of the River Town 
Villas.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation was included in the agenda packet and will be 
attached at the end of the minutes.  The plan is to build 18 single-level detached villas with options 
for a basement on the 4.3 acre site.  The villas are intended to be luxury villas with two to three 
different floor plans and exterior styles in multiple colors and textures.  Bellin Construction will 
be the exclusive builder and the homes will generally run between $325,000 and $425,000.  They 
will be located on a private street and placed in a meandering pattern. 
 
Nash reminded the Commission and audience that a concept plan is not a legal binding agreement, 
but rather an opportunity for a developer to gather information, likes and dislikes, and suggestions 
from the Commission and residents. 
 
Kangas addressed the Council stating that their group had met with staff to hear initial reaction to 
the concept plan and had already made some changes.  Concern was expressed about the drive 
being private as well as utilities.  Setbacks have already been addressed since initially the villas 
were close together.  The redesign showed that the villas would meet garage to garage and house 
to house with the side setback being larger at the house than the garage.  The garage size has also 
been raised as a concern but feels that this, too, has been addressed.  He went on to say that narrow 
sized lot are not bad, rather what needs to be asked is how narrow is too narrow.  The development 

4



will be HOA maintained.  It is not intended to be an entry level home, rather it will have a higher 
price point. 
 
Nash reviewed the options Council members have in regards to the River Town Villas Concept 
Plan: 

• Make a motion to approve the concept plan as shown subject to staff comments. 
• Make a motion to approve the concept plan as shown with the exception that the private 

drive be 28 feet or more in width and subject to staff comments. 
• Make a motion to approve the concept plan as shown with the private drive being 28 feet 

or more in width along with changes recommended in design and subject to staff 
comments. 

• Recommend denial of the concept plan and provide feedback of why it is not acceptable. 
 
Nash reiterated that developers are looking for specific feedback in order to prepare an acceptable 
preliminary plat. 
 
The developers are requesting a planned unit development, or PUD, which includes having a 
private street; hammerhead turn arounds instead of a cul de sac; reduced pavement width; reduced 
front yard setbacks; reduced lot widths; reduced side yard setbacks with living space mirroring 
living space and garage to garage; and a reduced garage size. 
 
Kauffman stated that some of the items that are being requested have been denied for another 
developer.  He agreed that garage size does appear to be an issue.  He believes that a 28 foot wide 
street would be better for emergency vehicles instead of the 26 foot being requested. 
 
Zajicek said that he was at the Planning Commission meeting last week as the alternate liaison for 
Council.  He responded to Kauffman’s statement regarding the requests for similar items being 
denied for another developer and said that this is a different type of development where the street 
is private and not a through road.  He said that there is off-street parking available throughout the 
development.  Zajicek agreed that a wider street would be better for emergency vehicles.  He likes 
the garage to garage, living area to living area setbacks as it gives the appearance of more open 
space.  He would like to see samples of this product and how it looks in real life. 
 
Hallstein asked where the snow storage would be and if a bus shelter would be included for school 
children at the end of the street.  Nash answered that the snow removal would be done by a 
contractor as it is a private drive and they would have to locate a place for the snow.  Nash indicated 
that there would not be a need for a bus shelter and that it has not been something seen in previous 
developments. 
 
Hallstein asked Messner about the width of the street.  Messner responded that a private drive is 
common for this type of development.  They are known as service or marginal accesses and the 
use of through traffic is discouraged.  He has seen similar developments where the width was 24-
26 feet wide and HOA maintained.  Messner went on to say that emergency vehicles would be 
able to get through if the street is narrower because parking on the street would not be allowed. 
 
Kauffman asked what the Planning Commission had recommended.  Nash replied that they had 
recommended approval with concerns expressed about the garage size. 
 
Nash said that the Council needs to make decisions about the design parameters so that the 
developer has guidance when creating the preliminary plat. 

5



 
Kangas explained that having a private drive allows for diversity in styles.  He did say that a 26 
foot wide street is not a deal breaker and is negotiable.  The smaller front yard setback was designed 
to give more area in the backyard and to be respectful of existing neighbors.  The front yard setback 
is 20 feet to the house and 25 feet to the garage so that the garage is set back and not as dominant.  
The street would be built to last with strong HOA documents to provide for future maintenance. 
 
Zajicek would like for garbage cans to be stored inside of the garage. 
 
Hallstein inquired about utilities.  Messner said that there would an easement over the utilities and 
they would be considered public utilities.  He cautioned against private utilities and an HOA 
maintaining them.  Kauffman asked where the utilities would be located.  Messner said they would 
be located down the middle of the street.  If a water main would break, the City would fix it, but 
the owner would have to put it back to the original state, ie, the HOA would have to repave the 
street. 
 
Zajicek asked where utility boxes would be located and the mailboxes.  Messner said that utility 
boxes are reviewed during the plat stages.  Jacobs said that the mailboxes would be common 
mailboxes and located in a few areas. 
 
Kauffman asked about the width of the lots.  Kangas replied the lots would be 55 feet wide with a 
40 x 60 foot building pad.  The garage would be 480 square feet with dimensions of 24 x 20 feet.  
Kauffman then asked Zajicek how he favors the side yard setbacks in this development but didn’t 
like similar ones for Hanover Cove.  Zajicek responded that he likes the larger gap between the 
living spaces that gives the perception of more room, but that he may not be a fan of the five-foot 
setback by the garages. 
 
Kauffman asked if the Council can dictate that the garages are located garage to garage.  Nash 
responded that garages tend to be on the higher elevation of the lot.  An oddly placed garage is not 
desirable from a design standpoint or an engineering perspective.  There tends to be some 
uniformity within a development. 
 
Nash reminded Council that every time a standard is specified, it impacts another aspect of design.  
For example, if the front yard set back is increased, the rear yard set back is impacted.  A larger 
garage size would make the façade of the home appear to all garage doors.  Kangas said that by 
having a 20-foot front yard setback, they feel the set of homes is more impactful. 
 
Hallstein wondered if the landscaping would be HOA maintained.  Kangas replied yes. 
 
Hallstein asked what is the current zoning of the parcel.  Nash replied that the Comprehensive Plan 
guides this parcel as multi-family, but that current zoning is for Downtown River.  She added that 
current zoning still needs to be addressed and updated to correspond with the newly adopted 
Comprehensive Plan 2040.  Continuing, she said that this type of housing, villas or patio homes, 
is not addressed in zoning and is allowed only with a PUD.  Nash said that a larger apartment 
building could be built in the current zoning district. 
 
Nash pointed out that the Bridges At Hanover townhomes are detached townhomes with a five 
foot side yard setback.  This was a PUD.  The drives are considered private drives with a small cul 
de sac with the townhomes around it.  The drives are HOA maintained. 
 

6



Hallstein wondered how members felt about garage size.  She had talked to a realtor who said that 
people have seasonal storage needs such as bikes, decorations, etc.  The people often do not realize 
that a garage is too small until after the purchase. 
 
Kangas responding by saying that garage depth is important.  They are planning on having the 
garage 24 feet deep and that would allow a large pick up to be stored in it.  He went on to say that 
builders cannot price it so that people have more garage. 
 
Warpula stated that he liked the plan and how it looks.  The development has a unique look and is 
not cookie cutter in nature.  He feels this will cater to a buyer that doesn’t have a lot of stuff.  He 
did say he would like to see the HOA prohibit sheds.  Jacobs replied that it will be a very strict 
HOA and no outdoor storage would be allowed and cars would not be allowed to park outside of 
the garage overnight so garage depth is very important.  Jacobs said they want to build something 
to be proud of. 
 
Messner said that the private drive in the Bridges At Hanover is 22 feet wide. 
 
Bellin said that there will be three or four looks for the same building footprint as well as design 
variations.  While the homes may have similar features, the look of the home will vary. 
 
Kangas said that they would like to move forward to the next step including a 26 foot wide street. 
 
It was decided that the concept plan was acceptable and should include having a street width of 26 
feet, a garage 20 x 24 feet, and the design parameters outlined in the Planner’s memo.  A motion 
was not needed per Hagen. 
 
 Rezoning, PUD, and Preliminary Plat - Hanover Cove 
Alan Roessler, Paxmar, gave a presentation outlining a revised concept plan which reduces the 
number of units to 271.  The development would be completed in several phases but the grading 
needs to be done at one time at the start of the project.  A brief overview follows with a copy of 
the presentation attached to the minutes: 

• Large single family homes located along the north and east side of the project will be multi-
level or rambler styled homes with an 80 foot wide lot. 

• Medium single family homes located in the northern half of the development will also be 
multi-level or rambler homes on a 65 foot wide lot. 

• Large patio/villa homes located along the southern edge of the project will be single level 
homes with a possibility of a rambler style on a 74 foot wide lot. 

• Medium patio/villa homes located in the southern half of the development will be single 
level homes with a possibility of a rambler style located on a 50 foot lot with a 480 square 
foot garage. 

• Narrow patio/villa homes located in the southwest corner of the project will be single level 
homes with a 480 square foot garage on a 38 foot wide lot. 

 
Roessler showed a photo of his own garage to show that a smaller sized garage is workable.  Miske 
Meadows in Elk River is an example of a similar development 
 
Roessler showed the Council two options for the development:  The first option was the one given 
to the Planning Commission and the second option was being presented for the first time at this 
meeting.  The second option had removed the narrow lots completely and the total number of units 
is 269. 

7



 
Kauffman started the discussion by saying that it is understood that people are frustrated.  By the 
developer not meeting deadlines and providing requested information has hurt how the developer 
is perceived.  He believes that it is not a question of density in which residents dislike, rather it is 
about the number of homes and how they are spaced.  He wants each developer to be treated fairly 
and doesn’t want to set precedents.  He said he doesn’t like the narrow patio home lots and it looks 
better with the second option.  He referred to past Crow River Heights developments that had 200 
homes, but without villas, and had 65 foot wide lots with eight foot side yard setbacks.  Kauffman 
went on to say there should be two sections of single-family homes and the villas in Hanover Cove. 
 
Zajicek questioned the size of the stormwater pond.  Jason Ver Steeg, Duininck Bros., responded 
that the area in which the pond is located totals nine acres.  The pond itself is approximately five 
acres. 
 
Kauffman asked what would happen if the large patio homes become more popular and are in 
higher demand than the medium patio homes.  Roessler said that the preliminary plat could be 
amended and the lots would be made wider. 
 
Hallstein responded to Kauffman’s comment regarding Crow River Heights by saying that it not 
the same type of development in appearance.  She stated the houses are placed in a coving pattern, 
giving the perception of space between homes. 
 
Nash spoke to the side year setbacks and explained that not all of the homes would use the reduced 
setback, only that it was possible to have a setback at that number.  She gave the example of some 
of the newer homes in Crow River Heights West Third Addition that have an eight foot side yard 
setback, but that few homes have actually used that option. 
 
Zajicek said that the size of the lots do not meet current standards. 
 
Kauffman asked Nash to review the PUD process.  Nash started the review by explaining that the 
zoning ordinance has standards that are outlined and that if a developer meets those standards, 
he/she can then develop the land.  The more regulations and specific design elements in place limit 
the flexibility for the lot and the homes tend to look the same.  With a PUD, it allows for different 
standards to be decided between the developer and the City.  A PUD becomes an adopted overlay.  
A PUD may also adopt stricter standards than what is in current zoning standards. 
 
Zajicek read the reasons for allowing a PUD:  creating a better overall design, environmental 
protection, and an improved living environment.  A PUD cannot be granted solely for the economic 
advantage of the developer.  He continued saying he does not like that the lots are set up in way 
that is without more space between them.  He said that he liked the patio homes he saw in Blaine, 
but that they were similar in color and created a continuous line.  The distance between the houses 
make them seem exactly the same.  He said he did like the single family homes he saw in Blaine.  
Zajicek also went to Elk River and said he didn’t like the rows of garage doors he saw.   
 
Zajicek turned to the proposed development and said he has issues with the number of homes, no 
green space and would like some homes staggered.  He continued with saying he would like the 
two lots at the entrance of 5th Street to be eliminated to make it visually more appealing. 
 

8



Hallstein asked Zajicek about how the front of the homes looked when he visited the developments.  
He replied the different looks or facades are not the issue, it is the closeness of the homes to one 
another.  He went on to say that the design presented tonight is not a better design. 
 
Kauffman said that perhaps the Council should have given feedback earlier. 
 
Nash reminded Council that staff is looking for direction and went over the options listed in the 
memo: 

• Direct staff to prepare findings of fact and a resolution for denial. 
• Direct staff to prepare findings of fact and a resolution for approval of the PUD and 

Preliminary Plat reviewed by the Planning Commission. 
• See plans revised to the new concept plan presented tonight and direct staff to take 

necessary actions for resubmittal. 
• See plans revised to the new concept plan presented tonight but with other changes desired 

by the City Council and direct staff to take necessary actions for resubmittal. 
• Nash went on to remind Council that the City is under a time limit and that the 120 day 

extension is approaching in which the City needs to make a decision.  Only the developer 
can make an additional extension. 

 
Kauffman recessed the meeting at 9:25 pm for a break. 
Kauffman reconvened the meeting at 9:30 pm. 
 
Nash was asked if ordinances needed to be changed before a decision was made on the proposed 
development.  She replied that the is not a need to change the ordinances because the City can 
adopt a PUD and it would only apply to this development.  She continued that ordinance changes 
are on the list of things to do this year to make it match the adopted Comprehensive Plan 2040, 
but that takes time and would not be accomplished by the time a decision needs to be made. 
 
When asked if Planning Commission would need to review a new version, Nash replied that if 
Planning Commission had looked at a version similar to the new one and there were only minor 
changes, then they probably wouldn’t have to see it again at a meeting. 
 
Nash said that the Council needs to think about what are the design terms that are acceptable to 
them that are different from what is in the zoning ordinance. 
 
Nash was asked how she calculated the density of the development.  She said that the total area is 
considered minus the outlot with pond; minus River Road and Eighth Street portions of the 
property; and minus encroachments in outlots.  This number is then divided by the number of units 
proposed. 
 
Zajicek asked Squires about the berm areas that have been taken care of by the residents and if 
there was any legal right to them.  Squires said generally not and that maintaining the berm area 
does not give them any rights to the area.  Heather Sandberg, 11578 Riverview Road NE, said that 
the property owner never maintained the berm areas even after the storm went through Hanover.  
Squires said that it may not be right and continued with the statement that this does not really have 
anything to do with the issues tonight. 
 
Hallstein asked the other Council members if they thought the PUD was creating a better design, 
protecting the environment, or improving the living environment.  Kauffman replied that the larger 

9



lots do, but the PUD overall does not.  Warpula, Zajicek, and Hallstein agreed and said no the PUD 
does not. 
 
Nash stated that if Council directs staff to prepare findings of fact for a denial, it would stop this 
process, and the developer would not be denied in bringing a new plan to the table.  If the rezoning 
is denied, the developer would not be able to apply for rezoning for one year. 
 
When questioned about the specifics Planning Commission gave the developer, Nash said that the 
Commission gave very specific information and feedback on the patio lots. 
 
Zajicek commented that there was a large gap in time between the time of the concept plan and 
the time that the PUD and Preliminary Plat came to Planning Commission. 
 
Zajicek continued saying that the product looks nice but it loses its desirability because of the 
closeness of the homes.  He added that a big development is being dropped right in the middle of 
Hanover and we want to make sure we do this right. 
 
Kauffman polled the rest of the Council members on whether they would rather have homes or an 
industrial park on the parcel. They all concurred that single family homes were desirable. 
 
An audience member stated that the Planning Commission did give direction to the developer and 
they did not follow it.   
 
Nash suggested having a workshop with Council and Planning Commission to understand the 
development process and how to give feedback to developers.  It would be a good discussion to 
have whether or not a workshop happens.  She was asked if this could happen before the deadline 
to act on the development.  She replied yes, but that it may take longer than the time frame 
available. 
 
Squires said that if the developer is willing to waive the deadline with conditions of giving a 
specific number of days notice of pulling the waiver, it could be written up and signed by both 
parties.  If the developer is not willing to waive the time line, then a decision needs to be made 
tonight. 
 
Roessler said that they need specific feedback, but believe this is the most efficient use of the lot.  
He went on to say they would agree to the waiver if specific feedback was given. 
 
An audience member suggested that Paxmar go to a neighborhood that Council likes rather than 
having Council go to Paxmar neighborhoods.  Kauffman suggested River Hills in Dayton. 
 
Nash said that the waiver would need to be in writing and then a workshop would be scheduled. 
 
Squires recommended that Council table a decision until the first Council meeting in March in 
order for a workshop to happen. 
 
Hallstein said she doesn’t feel that the developer met the requirements of a PUD. 
 
Hagen stated that tabling would actually be beneficial to staff to allow more time and allow a 
workshop to occur. 
 

10



Squires reminded the Council that even with a waiver and a workshop, the end could be the same. 
 
Warpula told the developer that it’s very hard for a small community to have 270 homes dropped 
in the middle of their town. 
 
Roessler replied that the proposal meets the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Hallstein rebutted that one of the goals is to retain the small town rural feel of Hanover and this 
does not feel like that.  She said that people here like their space. 
 
Kauffman said that there are some aspects of this development that does match some of our 
neighborhoods. 
 
Hallstein said that she is more inclined to go with the first option and deny the PUD. 
 
MOTION by Kauffman to table the decision until the first Council meeting in March.  Motion 
died for lack of second. 
 
Warpula and Zajicek respond they are leaning towards denial as well. 
 
Jason Duininck spoke to Council saying that they have put a lot of time into this proposal as has 
the City.  He would like to sit down with the City to work this out so everyone is on the same page.  
He encouraged Council to allow staff and the groups involved to extend the timeline and work 
through the process. 
 
Hallstein asked if the project is denied, would a workshop still happen.  Staff replied yes. 
 
Squires asked Nash if there was a waiting period for them to reapply for a PUD and Preliminary 
Plat.  Nash replied that she did not know and would have to look into it. 
 
MOTION by Kauffman to table the decision and have a workshop, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion 
does not carry due to split vote:  Voting in favor were Kauffman and Zajicek.  Voting against 
were Warpula and Hallstein. 
 
Hagen stated again that there is benefit to tabling this since there would be time with the waiver 
and it would allow time for a workshop. 
 
Squires said that a motion to deny can be made, but what if the vote is split as was the most current 
motion.  Hagen asked if there was a way to bring in Councilor Hammerseng to the Council meeting 
via phone.  Squires replied that is possible with very specific steps to follow to allow it to happen.  
When an audience member said that wouldn’t be right since Hammerseng hasn’t been here for 
meeting, Hagen assured the audience that he has been keeping Hammerseng up to date on the 
development. 
 
Nash was asked what would happen if the developer resubmitted.  She replied that the rezoning 
application would need to wait a year.  There would be new applications and fees.  The time frame 
would start all over again.  If there are not major changes that will be presented, it is not worth it 
to restart the process, rather to continue with the current process. 
 

11



Hallstein said that she is more comfortable with the timeline being on the side of the City rather 
than the developer.  She feels that feedback has been given and that the developer has said they 
are going to make changes and then they don’t. 
 
Discussion continued over the lack of specific direction given by Planning Commission. 
 
Zajicek asked if fees would be waived if they resubmitted.  No answer was given. 
 
Kauffman said that tabling would allow them time to get specific feedback. 
 
Nash informed Council that some cities will use the PUD to see how it works in their city and that 
way it is not embedded in the ordinance if aspects of the PUD turn out poorly. 
 
Hallstein said that Council could approve the rezoning portion and deny the PUD and Preliminary 
Plat.  Nash reminded the members that the previous development presented tonight has a similar 
product and higher density. 
 
Zajicek stated that he would like to rescind his second in tabling the decision and go with denial. 
 
Duininck asked to rescind the rezoning application.  Nash said that if the rezoning is rescinded, 
the rest of the applications are not viable.  She continued that Council can direct staff to do the 
rezoning and Council can deny the other two applications. 
 
Squires said that the developer has the option to withdraw all three applications. 
 
Duininck requested a short recess. 
 
Kauffman recessed the meeting at 10:40 pm. 
Kauffman reconvened the meeting at 10:45 pm. 
 
Jason Duininck verbally withdrew the applications submitted for rezoning, planned unit 
development, and preliminary plat related to the proposed Hanover Cove development. 
 
MOTION by Kauffman to accept the withdrawal of all three applications for rezoning, PUD, and 
Preliminary Plat of Hanover Cove with memorializing it afterward, seconded by Warpula.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Hallstein asked for feedback from the developer.  Duininck said that they feel there is no traction 
or moving forward in the process and that they are frustrated.  They feel that they have asked for 
guidance and was not given it. 
 
 
 
 Concept Plan - River Side Acres of Hanover 
Nash reviewed the application for annexation and concept plan for a parcel that is just outside of 
the Hanover city limits located in Rockford Township.  The applicant has no desire to bring water 
and sewer to the parcel.  Nash is bringing it to Council first since it involves annexation.  If the 
Council expresses interest in annexing the parcel into Hanover then it will go to Planning 
Commission.  At this time, there isn’t enough information to know if five lots are possible.  This 
would need a PUD. 

12



 
Hallstein said that it doesn’t meet the urban/suburban in nature requirement for annexation.  
Squires said that is so, but it could be annexed by ordinance. 
 
Paul Otto, Engineer for the applicant, stated that the property is in the transition zone and could 
possibly be ghost platted with the County and brought into Hanover in the future.  He would like 
to know if this is something the Council is interested in. 
 
Warpula asked Nash what were her thoughts.  Nash replied that this is the first she has heard of 
regarding what Otto is proposing and this was not on the application. 
 
Nash continued saying that this is a policy discussion and mentioned that the entity that would be 
responsible for water and sewer when it came to this parcel would be the City.  She said that there 
is historical data showing this has not been successful in the past. 
 
Nash indicated that this is similar to when the City of St. Michael took over Frankfort Township. 
 
Messner required why they would be required to bring water and sewer to the parcel.  Nash replied 
that it tends to be a condition of annexation. 
 
Hallstein asked what would be the cost to the City to bring and is nervous without more 
information. 
 
Squires inquired why not complete this through the County and obtain the same end result.  The 
applicant replied that they want to the parcel annexed into Hanover. 
 
Nash said that she and Messner need to go back and get all the information needed before bringing 
it back to Council and Planning Commission. 
 
 Res No 02-05-19-08 - Approving Audit Review Contract 
Hagen said that the proposal before Council is for AEM to provide review services for the 
documents prepared by the City for the 2018 Annual Audit.  Kauffman asked about a cap on the 
amount spent.  Hagen responded that it should be no more than $2,500-3,000.  Without the 
contract, the City loses a review of its financial statements.  If mistakes are made and the auditors 
find them, the City faces elevated written findings.  Hagen noted this proposal provides another 
set of eyes to ensure our financials are properly documented.  The proposal would not be needed 
in order for the work to be completed.  Hallstein said she thinks it is money worth spending.  
Kauffman said he is willing to give it this year. 
 
MOTION by Zajicek to approve the proposal for audit service through AEM, seconded by 
Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 2019 Strategic Planning Session 
MOTION by Zajicek to table the discussion for the 2019 Strategic Planning Session, seconded by 
Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 2019 Annual Cleanup Day 
Hagen said that Cleanup Day is tentatively scheduled for Saturday, May 18th.  Last year the project 
did lose money due to staff wages, otherwise it went very well.  Staff is reviewing prices charged 

13



by the recyclers and ensuring that item fees cover expenses incurred.  Council members agreed 
that it should occur again this year as it is a good service to provide to residents. 
 
Reports 
 Doboszenski  

• said that Hanover Youth Ball has asked if the City would be providing a Porta-
Potty at Hanover Elementary School again this year.  Council said that yes, that 
was acceptable. 

 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 11:20 pm, seconded by Hallstein.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
       
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:44 PM

Page 1

Current Period: December 2018

$3,528.79Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 12/31/18PAY4

Payment Posted

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE Ck# 034104  12/31/2018Refer 2587

Cash Payment $63.20Legal Support / Work - December 2018E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 2/1/2019

$63.20TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CITY OF ST. MICHAEL Ck# 002582E 2/19/2019Refer 2598

Cash Payment $1,087.79Library Operations - 4th Quarter 2018E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-5 2/12/2019

Cash Payment -$313.082018 Library Year End ReconciliationE 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-5 2/12/2019

Cash Payment $2,152.43Senior Center Operations - 4th Quarter 2018E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-5 2/12/2019

Cash Payment -$204.102018 Senior Center Year End ReconciliationsE 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-5 2/12/2019

$2,723.04TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

RUPP ANDERSON SQUIRES & WA Ck# 034105  12/31/2018Refer 2586

Cash Payment $54.00Hanover Cove: December 2018G 827-20200 Accounts Payable

Invoice 8546 2/4/2019

Cash Payment $306.00Miscellaneous: December 2018E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 8546 2/4/2019

Cash Payment $300.00City Council and Board / Commission Meetings: 
December 2018

E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 8546 2/4/2019

Cash Payment $82.55Mileage, Meals, Photocopies: December 2018E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 8546 2/4/2019

$742.55TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Check $3,528.79

Checks to be Generated by the Computer $0.00

Total $3,528.79

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $54.00

100 GENERAL FUND $3,474.79

$3,528.79

26



27



28



29



30



31



02/14/19 3:07 PM

Cash Balances

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

December 2018

Fund
Begin
Month

GL Debits
Month

GL Credits
Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $613,873.05 $293,486.53 $144,031.16 $763,328.42

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $23,868.31 $1,348.52 $33.99 $25,182.84

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $91,869.68 $6,315.08 $1,320.00 $96,864.76

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $128,302.64 $3,282.34 $0.00 $131,584.98

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $83,254.41 $548.14 $0.00 $83,802.55

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $10,669.32 $71.94 $0.00 $10,741.26

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $449,042.66 $3,018.66 $0.00 $452,061.32

315 2016A GO CIP BOND $90,717.02 $525.16 $0.00 $91,242.18

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $1,233,116.32 $9,664.05 $0.00 $1,242,780.37

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $28,602.09 $256.70 $3,800.00 $25,058.79

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $293,103.70 $2,031.71 $0.00 $295,135.41

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

405 PARK DEDICATION FEE $2,740.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,740.00

406 GAMBLING PROCEEDS $6,650.00 $44.19 $0.00 $6,694.19

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $13,404.48 $82.47 $5,645.82 $7,841.13

409 MAHLER PIT - 15TH ST IMP FUND $79,056.88 $567.36 $0.00 $79,624.24

411 FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJ FUND -$514,537.06 $0.00 $0.00 -$514,537.06

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $126,326.61 $888.65 $0.00 $127,215.26

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $102,547.31 $597.99 $0.00 $103,145.30

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $903,178.21 $15,520.76 $5,195.14 $913,503.83

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $313,747.11 $29,245.03 $41,612.41 $301,379.73

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $120,033.19 $4,380.22 $1,568.00 $122,845.41

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $168,120.38 $1,206.53 $0.00 $169,326.91

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,969,039.04 $14,089.80 $0.00 $1,983,128.84

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $606,943.25 $4,355.77 $0.00 $611,299.02

701 RIVER ROAD CEMETERY $35,981.74 $0.00 $0.00 $35,981.74

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $9,040.55 $8.50 $1,648.70 $7,400.35

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,626.40 $26.02 $0.00 $3,652.42

823 CROW RVR HTS WEST 3RD / BACKES $20,691.17 $142.48 $3,496.00 $17,337.65

825 CROW RVR HTS FUT WEST PLAT/PUD $11,196.31 $0.00 $2,646.50 $8,549.81

826 CROW RVR HTS 4TH ADD FINL PLAT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $54,825.00 $0.00 $13,079.44 $41,745.56

900 INTEREST $30,690.63 $22,425.74 $0.00 $53,116.37

$7,178,720.40 $414,130.34 $224,077.16 $7,368,773.58

32



02/14/19 3:09 PM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

December
2018 Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $177,229.65 $872,456.86 $881,449.00 $8,992.14 98.98%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $129,904.00 $129,904.00 $0.00 100.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $11,234.25 $15,000.00 $3,765.75 74.90%

$177,229.65 $1,013,595.11 $1,026,353.00 $12,757.89 98.76%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $3,759.00 $0.00 -$3,759.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $1,975.00 $12,699.04 $10,000.00 -$2,699.04 126.99%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $75.00 $775.00 $400.00 -$375.00 193.75%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $50.00 $5,756.00 $2,000.00 -$3,756.00 287.80%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $48.25 $75.00 $26.75 64.33%

SERVICE R 100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges $0.00 $415.00 $0.00 -$415.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $28,382.80 $141,160.80 $140,661.00 -$499.80 100.36%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $4,982.70 $6,000.00 $1,017.30 83.05%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $2,050.00 $3,000.00 $950.00 68.33%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $3,500.00 $2,000.00 -$1,500.00 175.00%

$30,482.80 $175,145.79 $164,136.00 -$11,009.79 106.71%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.40 -$2,020.83 $900.00 $2,920.83 -224.54%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $2,659.82 $8,062.20 $3,000.00 -$5,062.20 268.74%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $1,583.68 -$2,235.02 $6,000.00 $8,235.02 -37.25%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $375.00 $2,000.00 $1,625.00 18.75%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $1,429.00 $1,429.00 $8,000.00 $6,571.00 17.86%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements $159.49 $418.62 $0.00 -$418.62 0.00%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Asset $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$5,832.39 $6,028.97 $20,400.00 $14,371.03 29.55%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $50.00 $7,070.00 $10,370.00 $3,300.00 68.18%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $1,790.00 $400.00 -$1,390.00 447.50%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $400.00 $87,710.88 $140,000.00 $52,289.12 62.65%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 100.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $1,180.00 $800.00 -$380.00 147.50%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $3.00 $47.00 $50.00 $3.00 94.00%

$453.00 $99,297.88 $153,220.00 $53,922.12 64.81%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $15,269.50 $27,989.00 $0.00 -$27,989.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $58,825.50 $117,651.00 $117,651.00 $0.00 100.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $659.47 $1,318.94 $0.00 -$1,318.94 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $169.50 $339.00 $339.00 $0.00 100.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $39,020.04 $39,000.00 -$20.04 100.05%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $5,983.76 $5,500.00 -$483.76 108.80%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$74,923.97 $192,301.74 $162,490.00 -$29,811.74 118.35%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $460.29 $6,725.12 $2,000.00 -$4,725.12 336.26%

$460.29 $6,725.12 $2,000.00 -$4,725.12 336.26%Source Alt Code FINES

$289,382.10 $1,493,094.61 $1,528,599.00 $35,504.39 97.68%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

33



Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

December
2018 Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

02/14/19 3:09 PM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$289,382.10 $1,493,094.61 $1,528,599.00 $35,504.39 97.68%

34



02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $4,515.00 $10,050.00 $13,000.00 $2,950.00 77.31%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $279.93 $623.10 $806.00 $182.90 77.31%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $65.46 $145.72 $189.00 $43.28 77.10%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $345.00 $400.00 $55.00 86.25%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $200.00 $4,114.21 $7,500.00 $3,385.79 54.86%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $40.33 $751.71 $500.00 -$251.71 150.34%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $32.72 $3,879.80 $17,503.00 $13,623.20 22.17%

$5,133.44 $19,909.54 $39,898.00 $19,988.46 49.90%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,000.00 75.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

$3,000.00 $3,000.00 $4,600.00 $1,600.00 65.22%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $5,541.52 $70,424.49 $72,040.00 $1,615.51 97.76%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $415.62 $5,399.52 $5,403.00 $3.48 99.94%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $343.58 $4,463.61 $4,466.00 $2.39 99.95%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $80.36 $1,043.99 $1,045.00 $1.01 99.90%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $175.18 $520.24 $400.00 -$120.24 130.06%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $650.21 $8,319.06 $8,400.00 $80.94 99.04%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $142.97 $1,304.01 $1,500.00 $195.99 86.93%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $91.72 $500.00 $408.28 18.34%

$7,349.44 $91,566.64 $93,754.00 $2,187.36 97.67%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $2,540.55 $4,085.15 $5,000.00 $914.85 81.70%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $3,879.27 $5,000.00 $1,120.73 77.59%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $64.39 $300.00 $235.61 21.46%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $455.98 $455.98 $1,500.00 $1,044.02 30.40%

$2,996.53 $8,484.79 $11,800.00 $3,315.21 71.91%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,516.81 $44,827.32 $45,718.00 $890.68 98.05%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $263.76 $3,436.33 $3,429.00 -$7.33 100.21%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $217.48 $2,840.12 $2,835.00 -$5.12 100.18%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $50.86 $664.29 $663.00 -$1.29 100.19%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $109.89 $1,494.68 $1,600.00 $105.32 93.42%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $701.02 $8,400.00 $8,400.00 $0.00 100.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $22.50 $250.00 $227.50 9.00%

$4,859.82 $61,685.24 $63,395.00 $1,709.76 97.30%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $200.00 $300.00 $100.00 66.67%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $240.00 $500.00 $260.00 48.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $246.33 $952.60 $2,000.00 $1,047.40 47.63%

$246.33 $1,392.60 $2,800.00 $1,407.40 49.74%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $4,080.00 $51,865.47 $53,040.00 $1,174.53 97.79%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $306.00 $3,978.00 $3,978.00 $0.00 100.00%
35



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $252.96 $3,273.96 $3,288.00 $14.04 99.57%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $59.16 $765.56 $769.00 $3.44 99.55%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $84.80 $1,034.99 $1,100.00 $65.01 94.09%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $666.16 $8,366.16 $8,400.00 $33.84 99.60%

ACCTING E 100-41530-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $210.00 $1,000.00 $790.00 21.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $41.66 $250.00 $208.34 16.66%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $435.00 $3,250.75 $5,000.00 $1,749.25 65.02%

$5,884.08 $72,786.55 $76,825.00 $4,038.45 94.74%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $21,050.00 $21,050.00 $0.00 100.00%

$0.00 $21,050.00 $21,050.00 $0.00 100.00%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $218.15 $20,610.15 $20,000.00 -$610.15 103.05%

$218.15 $20,610.15 $20,000.00 -$610.15 103.05%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER -$106.03 $2,681.22 $3,500.00 $818.78 76.61%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $3.00 -$15.38 $200.00 $215.38 -7.69%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $0.00 $4,089.10 $8,000.00 $3,910.90 51.11%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $176.05 $3,926.65 $4,000.00 $73.35 98.17%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $117.11 $1,867.36 $2,500.00 $632.64 74.69%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $1,122.00 $6,000.00 $4,878.00 18.70%

$190.13 $13,670.95 $24,200.00 $10,529.05 56.49%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $718.00 $7,197.80 $8,500.00 $1,302.20 84.68%

$718.00 $7,197.80 $8,500.00 $1,302.20 84.68%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $4,917.21 $12,539.61 $23,500.00 $10,960.39 53.36%

$4,917.21 $12,539.61 $23,500.00 $10,960.39 53.36%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $4,949.00 $27,194.22 $25,000.00 -$2,194.22 108.78%

$4,949.00 $27,194.22 $25,000.00 -$2,194.22 108.78%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $144.06 $9,120.92 $7,000.00 -$2,120.92 130.30%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $620.00 $250.00 -$370.00 248.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $1,365.00 $7,243.92 $9,000.00 $1,756.08 80.49%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $989.35 $7,917.72 $4,200.00 -$3,717.72 188.52%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $262.00 $300.00 $38.00 87.33%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $3,443.89 $14,331.81 $14,000.00 -$331.81 102.37%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $2,074.88 $9,401.10 $8,000.00 -$1,401.10 117.51%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $241.16 $2,883.82 $3,500.00 $616.18 82.39%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $9,711.15 $4,500.00 -$5,211.15 215.80%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $1,450.00 $2,500.00 $1,050.00 58.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment -$217.15 $7,941.77 $500.00 -$7,441.771588.35%

$8,041.19 $70,884.21 $55,750.00 -$15,134.21 127.15%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $3,470.75 $14,178.50 $25,000.00 $10,821.50 56.71%

$3,470.75 $14,178.50 $25,000.00 $10,821.50 56.71%Dept 41950 Engineer 36



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3

02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $11,061.75 $9,500.00 -$1,561.75 116.44%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $13,521.98 $22,000.00 $8,478.02 61.46%

$0.00 $24,583.73 $31,500.00 $6,916.27 78.04%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $71.88 $274.06 $2,000.00 $1,725.94 13.70%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $165.95 $500.00 $334.05 33.19%

$71.88 $440.01 $2,850.00 $2,409.99 15.44%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $60,821.79 $81,096.00 $20,274.21 75.00%

$0.00 $60,821.79 $81,096.00 $20,274.21 75.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $9,816.52 $109,696.10 $105,120.00 -$4,576.10 104.35%

$9,816.52 $109,696.10 $105,120.00 -$4,576.10 104.35%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $29,841.38 $59,000.00 $29,158.62 50.58%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $3,271.10 $3,658.00 $386.90 89.42%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $765.03 $856.00 $90.97 89.37%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $167.88 $0.00 -$167.88 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $5,023.45 $8,500.00 $3,476.55 59.10%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $350.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $2,497.00 $4,000.00 $1,503.00 62.43%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $725.00 $1,000.00 $275.00 72.50%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $2,003.82 $5,000.00 $2,996.18 40.08%

$0.00 $44,294.66 $82,364.00 $38,069.34 53.78%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $27.54 $4,817.58 $15,500.00 $10,682.42 31.08%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $92.54 $1,170.06 $1,500.00 $329.94 78.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $60.00 $396.91 $850.00 $453.09 46.70%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $12,908.50 $16,285.37 $28,500.00 $12,214.63 57.14%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $276.54 $5,081.17 $5,000.00 -$81.17 101.62%

$13,365.12 $27,751.09 $51,350.00 $23,598.91 54.04%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $3,260.00 $4,868.62 $12,500.00 $7,631.38 38.95%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $3,168.42 $3,210.00 $41.58 98.70%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $1,397.06 $1,500.00 $102.94 93.14%

$3,260.00 $9,434.10 $17,210.00 $7,775.90 54.82%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $243.17 $3,164.45 $4,500.00 $1,335.55 70.32%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $45.42 $3,954.20 $9,000.00 $5,045.80 43.94%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $168.97 $2,000.00 $1,831.03 8.45%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $11,144.51 $7,805.00 -$3,339.51 142.79%

$288.59 $18,432.13 $23,305.00 $4,872.87 79.09%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $337.78 $617.12 $1,650.00 $1,032.88 37.40%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $60.98 $9,717.36 $7,500.00 -$2,217.36 129.56%37



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4

02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $140.24 $1,049.82 $1,000.00 -$49.82 104.98%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $175.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $1,122.56 $4,178.46 $4,500.00 $321.54 92.85%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $1,104.56 $3,369.23 $3,000.00 -$369.23 112.31%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $932.35 $0.00 -$932.35 0.00%

$2,766.12 $19,864.34 $17,825.00 -$2,039.34 111.44%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $39,020.04 $39,000.00 -$20.04 100.05%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contr $6,005.50 $12,011.00 $12,011.00 $0.00 100.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $6,250.00 $6,500.00 $250.00 96.15%

$6,005.50 $57,281.04 $57,511.00 $229.96 99.60%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $2,756.21 $38,237.57 $50,000.00 $11,762.43 76.48%

$2,756.21 $38,237.57 $50,000.00 $11,762.43 76.48%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $205.00 $1,070.00 $500.00 -$570.00 214.00%

$205.00 $1,070.00 $500.00 -$570.00 214.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $11,585.31 $145,836.81 $131,192.00 -$14,644.81 111.16%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $700.84 $2,000.00 $1,299.16 35.04%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $11,510.00 $13,740.00 $2,230.00 83.77%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $868.90 $11,247.90 $11,714.00 $466.10 96.02%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $712.36 $9,649.35 $10,536.00 $886.65 91.58%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $166.60 $2,256.76 $2,464.00 $207.24 91.59%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $246.62 $2,390.41 $2,100.00 -$290.41 113.83%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $7,057.74 $250.00 -$6,807.742823.10%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $2,678.78 $31,625.18 $30,000.00 -$1,625.18 105.42%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $2,459.23 $2,500.00 $40.77 98.37%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels $2,107.10 $11,874.02 $7,000.00 -$4,874.02 169.63%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies $106.53 $7,989.31 $5,500.00 -$2,489.31 145.26%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,334.01 $15,044.35 $9,000.00 -$6,044.35 167.16%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials $376.74 $376.74 $1,500.00 $1,123.26 25.12%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor $626.32 $3,925.20 $5,000.00 $1,074.80 78.50%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260 Uniforms $0.00 $2,266.15 $3,000.00 $733.85 75.54%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Serv $1,250.00 $5,455.00 $17,000.00 $11,545.00 32.09%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $446.30 $3,184.92 $2,800.00 -$384.92 113.75%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325 Taxes $0.00 $118.00 $200.00 $82.00 59.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-381 Electric Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$22,505.57 $274,967.91 $257,496.00 -$17,471.91 106.79%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $162.50 $7,749.73 $100,000.00 $92,250.27 7.75%

$162.50 $7,749.73 $100,000.00 $92,250.27 7.75%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $720.00 $6,504.50 $15,000.00 $8,495.50 43.36%

$720.00 $6,504.50 $15,000.00 $8,495.50 43.36%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal
38



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5

02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $9,363.22 $15,987.70 $15,000.00 -$987.70 106.58%

$9,363.22 $15,987.70 $15,000.00 -$987.70 106.58%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $4,545.10 $24,046.19 $25,000.00 $953.81 96.18%

$4,545.10 $24,046.19 $25,000.00 $953.81 96.18%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $3,448.47 $0.00 -$3,448.47 0.00%

$0.00 $3,448.47 $0.00 -$3,448.47 0.00%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $6,763.56 $40,446.34 $38,500.00 -$1,946.34 105.06%

$6,763.56 $40,446.34 $38,500.00 -$1,946.34 105.06%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $1,948.33 $8,140.19 $8,700.00 $559.81 93.57%

$1,948.33 $8,140.19 $8,700.00 $559.81 93.57%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $33.96 $1,932.78 $2,000.00 $67.22 96.64%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $477.23 $5,642.26 $5,000.00 -$642.26 112.85%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $139.97 $3,701.11 $8,000.00 $4,298.89 46.26%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 $0.00 100.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $512.18 $2,070.95 $2,200.00 $129.05 94.13%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs $0.00 $2,529.16 $2,200.00 -$329.16 114.96%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $180.00 $4,188.27 $8,000.00 $3,811.73 52.35%

$1,343.34 $26,864.53 $35,700.00 $8,835.47 75.25%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $774.71 $10,638.48 $11,500.00 $861.52 92.51%

$774.71 $10,638.48 $11,500.00 $861.52 92.51%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $488.63 $5,000.00 $4,511.37 9.77%

$0.00 $488.63 $5,000.00 $4,511.37 9.77%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$138,635.34 $1,277,340.03 $1,528,599.00 $251,258.97 83.56%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

39



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

December
2018
Amt

2018
YTD Amt

2018 YTD
Budget

2018 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6

02/14/19 3:08 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$138,635.34 $1,277,340.03 $1,528,599.00 $251,258.97 83.56%

40



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:48 PM

Page 1

Current Period: February 2019

$43,237.38Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 02/19/19 PAY

Payment Posted

ALLINA HEALTH SYSTEM Ck# 002584E 2/19/2019Refer 2600

Cash Payment $804.28Education Billing - 1st Quarter 2019E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice II10025005 1/31/2019

$804.28TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

AT&T MOBILITY  Refer 2594

Cash Payment $216.75PW Cell Phones - 12/18/18 - 01/17/19E 100-43000-321 Telephone

Invoice X01252019

$216.75TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

BIFFS INC. Ck# 002581E 2/19/2019Refer 2591

Cash Payment $90.00EagleView Park Mini Biff Service 01/02/19 - 
01/29/19

E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice W709849 1/30/2201

$90.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

BLUE TARP FINANCIAL Ck# 002586E 2/19/2019Refer 2608

Cash Payment $170.97Strongway Hose Reel, Rubber Wheel ChocksE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E

Invoice 0191079626 1/31/2019

$170.97TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC  Refer 2601

Cash Payment $240.24LG Gloves, Oxygen Regulator, Stethoscope 
Spare Parts Kit, Curaplex Med 3 BP Unit Kit, 
Curaplex Select BVM, Cervical Collar Bag

E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies

Invoice 83101744 1/31/2019

$240.24TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE  Refer 2588

Cash Payment $9.91Legal Support / Work - January 2019E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 2/1/2019

$9.91TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTERPOINT ENERGY  Refer 2589

Cash Payment $1,141.30PW Building Gas Utilities: 12/27/18 - 1/28/19E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $589.04Fire Station Gas Utilities: 12/27/18 - 1/28/19E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $834.60City Hall Gas Utilities: 12/27/18 - 1/28/19E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 1/30/2019

$2,564.94TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTURY LINK  Refer 2603

Cash Payment $38.55Fire Station Landline - 1/28/19 - 2/27/19E 100-42280-321 Telephone

Invoice 1/28/2019

$38.55TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CITY OF ST. MICHAEL Ck# 002583E 2/19/2019Refer 2599

Cash Payment $1,250.00Compost & Brush Facility Partnership - 1st 
Quarter 2019

E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 02122019-6 2/12/2019

41



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:48 PM

Page 2

Current Period: February 2019

Cash Payment $1,099.82Library Operations - 1st Quarter 2019E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-6 2/12/2019

Cash Payment $2,174.51Senior Center Operations - 1st Quarter 2019E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous

Invoice 02122019-6 2/12/2019

$4,524.33TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CLASSIC CLEANING COMPANY, LL  Refer 2590

Cash Payment $325.00City Hall Monthly Cleaning - January 2019E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 27647 1/28/2019

Cash Payment $130.00Hall Special Cleaning: 1/20 & 1/26E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 27647 1/28/2019

$455.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

COLLABORATIVE PLANNING LLC Ck# 002585E 2/19/2019Refer 2605

Cash Payment $927.00General Planning: January 2019E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-019 2/13/2019

Cash Payment $5,639.25Hanover Cove Preliminary Plat: January 2019E 827-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-020 2/13/2019

Cash Payment $566.50JW Family Holdings / River Town Villas: 
January 2019

Project 208250

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-021 2/13/2019

Cash Payment $180.25Ben & Kristal Sneen / Riverside Acres - 
Concept Plan: January 2019

Project 208251

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-022 2/13/2019

Cash Payment $180.25Ben & Kristal Sneen / Riverside Acres - 
Annexation: January 2019

Project 208252

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-022 2/13/2019

Cash Payment $51.50CRH Future West Prelim. Plat: January 2019E 825-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-023 2/13/2019

$7,544.75TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

COMCAST  Refer 2595

Cash Payment $221.19CH: Digital Voice & Internet - February 2019E 100-41940-321 Telephone

Invoice 1/25/2019

$221.19TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

CONZET, CATHERINE  Refer 2593

Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Release - 2/2/19 EventE 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 2/6/2019

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

COTTENS, INC.  Refer 2607

Cash Payment $46.90GreaseE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 155012 1/14/2019

Cash Payment $27.99Pump on Engine 12: SolenoidE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts

Invoice 155301 1/16/2019

Cash Payment $59.45Pump on Engine 12: Transmission Oil, 10W30E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts

Invoice 155310 1/16/2019

Cash Payment $103.98Loader: Hydraulic FluidE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 157034 1/30/2019

$238.32TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

FS SOLUTIONS  Refer 2583

42



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:48 PM

Page 3

Current Period: February 2019

Cash Payment $250.00Annual Subscription Fee - 2019E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice FL00274690 2/7/2019

$250.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

HARDWARE HANK  Refer 2611

Cash Payment $5.39Hose AdapterE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 1532835 1/3/2019

Cash Payment $8.98Flourescent BulbE 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 1535265 1/14/2019

Cash Payment $17.08Women's Lav. Sink: White SealantE 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 1536654 1/22/2019

$31.45TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

LOUKUSA, HENRY OR ANN  Refer 2581

Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Release - 2/10/19 EventE 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 2/11/2019

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

MENARDS - BUFFALO  Refer 2606

Cash Payment $20.17Plates, Forks, Paper TowelsE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 90736 1/31/2019

Cash Payment $12.121/2" Gang Box, 3/4" Gang Box, 15a Outlet, 
Gang Toggle Switch, PVC Riser

E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 90736 1/31/2019

$32.29TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI  Refer 2596

Cash Payment $48.08Pmt 1-18 @ 11542 Riverview Road NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $266.78Pmt 2-18 @ 11542 Riverview Road NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $603.00Pmt 35-18 @ 10677 Jonquil LaneE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $39.99Pmt 103-18 @ 10731 108th Avenue NorthE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $35.00Pmt 121-18 @ 1455 Esterly Oaks DriveE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $30.10Pmt 123-18 @ 10143 Kaitlin Avenue NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

Cash Payment $35.00Pmt 125-18 @ 1333 Oakwood LaneE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 1858 1/30/2019

$1,057.95TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

MN PEIP  Refer 2584

Cash Payment $3,737.22Medical & Dental Premiums - March 2019G 100-21706 Medical/Dental Ins

Invoice 814950 2/10/2019

Cash Payment $55.72Life Insurance - March 2019G 100-21707 Life Ins

Invoice 814950 2/10/2019

$3,792.94TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

MNGFOA  Refer 2592

Cash Payment $41.70MNGFOA Membership - Jackie 03/02/19 - 
12/31/19

E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice 10863 2/4/2019

43



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:48 PM

Page 4

Current Period: February 2019

Cash Payment $8.30MNGFOA Membership - Jackie 01/01/20 - 
03/01/20

G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 10863 2/4/2019

$50.00TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

PINNACLE PRINTING INCORPORA  Refer 2610

Cash Payment $251.00City Logo Vehicle / Equipment StickersE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies

Invoice 16802 2/6/2019

$251.00TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

RUSSELL SECURITY RESOURCE I Ck# 002587E 2/19/2019Refer 2609

Cash Payment $160.00City Hall Front Door: Diagnose and Fix Card 
Reader Issues

E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice A34156 2/4/2019

$160.00TotalTransaction Date 2/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

ULTIMATE SAFETY CONCEPTS, IN  Refer 2604

Cash Payment $361.23X380 NFPA Compliant Battery - Qty 2E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment

Invoice 181190 1/31/2019

$361.23TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA  Refer 2582

Cash Payment $4,898.25Sewer Services - March 2019E 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 90183625 2/15/2019

Cash Payment $3,585.83Water Services - March 2019E 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 90183625 2/15/2019

$8,484.08TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

VERIZON  Refer 2602

Cash Payment $50.84iPad Data Plan - 01/03/19 - 02/02/19E 100-42280-321 Telephone

Invoice 9823417990 2/2/2019

$50.84TotalTransaction Date 2/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA  Refer 2585

Cash Payment $9,064.17WC Patrol Services - February 2019E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice February19 1/31/2019

$9,064.17TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY  Refer 2597

Cash Payment $895.59Xcel Owned Street Lighting 01/03/19 - 02/02/19E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $1,236.61City Owned Street Lighting 01/03/19 - 02/03/19E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice 625071126 2/4/2019

$2,132.20TotalTransaction Date 2/11/2019 Cash 10100Due 0

44



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 02/14/19 2:48 PM

Page 5

Current Period: February 2019

Pre-Written Check $13,294.33

Checks to be Generated by the Computer $29,943.05

Total $43,237.38

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $5,639.25

825 CROW RVR HTS FUT WEST PLAT/PUD $51.50

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $927.00

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $4,898.25

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $3,585.83

100 GENERAL FUND $28,135.55

$43,237.38

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



02/14/19 3:09 PM

Cash Balances

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

February 2019

Fund
Begin
Month

GL Debits
Month

GL Credits
Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $702,544.45 $0.00 $59,256.43 $643,288.02

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $25,332.84 $0.00 $0.00 $25,332.84

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $97,247.57 $0.00 $104.40 $97,143.17

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $138,640.59 $0.00 $0.00 $138,640.59

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $45,975.05 $0.00 $0.00 $45,975.05

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $10,746.69 $0.00 $0.00 $10,746.69

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $452,061.32 $0.00 $0.00 $452,061.32

315 2016A GO CIP BOND $11,129.68 $0.00 $0.00 $11,129.68

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $1,242,780.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,242,780.37

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $25,058.79 $0.00 $0.00 $25,058.79

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $295,135.41 $0.00 $0.00 $295,135.41

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

405 PARK DEDICATION FEE $2,740.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,740.00

406 GAMBLING PROCEEDS $8,142.19 $0.00 $0.00 $8,142.19

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $7,841.13 $0.00 $0.00 $7,841.13

409 MAHLER PIT - 15TH ST IMP FUND $88,113.88 $0.00 $0.00 $88,113.88

411 FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJ FUND -$514,537.06 $0.00 $0.00 -$514,537.06

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $127,215.26 $0.00 $0.00 $127,215.26

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $103,145.30 $0.00 $0.00 $103,145.30

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $915,704.63 $0.00 $7,756.49 $907,948.14

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $319,395.14 $0.00 $10,370.75 $309,024.39

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $125,545.02 $0.00 $264.00 $125,281.02

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $169,326.91 $0.00 $0.00 $169,326.91

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,983,454.97 $0.00 $0.00 $1,983,454.97

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $611,299.02 $0.00 $0.00 $611,299.02

701 RIVER ROAD CEMETERY $35,981.74 $0.00 $0.00 $35,981.74

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $15,400.35 $0.00 $927.00 $14,473.35

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,652.42 $0.00 $0.00 $3,652.42

823 CROW RVR HTS WEST 3RD / BACKES $17,337.65 $0.00 $0.00 $17,337.65

825 CROW RVR HTS FUT WEST PLAT/PUD $8,549.81 $0.00 $51.50 $8,498.31

826 CROW RVR HTS 4TH ADD FINL PLAT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $41,745.56 $0.00 $5,639.25 $36,106.31

900 INTEREST $53,116.37 $0.00 $0.00 $53,116.37

$7,238,823.05 $0.00 $84,369.82 $7,154,453.23

58



02/14/19 3:10 PM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

February
2019 Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $12,515.88 $1,019,659.00 $1,007,143.12 1.23%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $0.00 $101,578.00 $101,578.00 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $3,822.89 $15,000.00 $11,177.11 25.49%

$0.00 $16,338.77 $1,136,237.00 $1,119,898.23 1.44%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $0.00 $700.00 $10,000.00 $9,300.00 7.00%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $0.00 $25.00 $600.00 $575.00 4.17%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $0.00 $900.00 $3,000.00 $2,100.00 30.00%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges $0.00 $620.00 $0.00 -$620.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $0.00 $110,755.00 $110,755.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $1,166.60 $6,000.00 $4,833.40 19.44%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $125.00 $2,500.00 $2,375.00 5.00%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $2,300.00 $2,000.00 -$300.00 115.00%

$0.00 $5,836.60 $134,905.00 $129,068.40 4.33%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $5.00 $100.00 $95.00 5.00%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $0.00 $400.00 $400.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $0.00 $1,100.00 $0.00 -$1,100.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Asset $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $1,105.00 $4,500.00 $3,395.00 24.56%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $0.00 $10,370.00 $10,370.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $0.00 $1,388.17 $100,000.00 $98,611.83 1.39%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

$0.00 $1,388.17 $112,920.00 $111,531.83 1.23%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $0.00 $118,253.00 $118,253.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $339.00 $339.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $0.00 $39,000.00 $39,000.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $163,092.00 $163,092.00 0.00%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%Source Alt Code FINES

$0.00 $24,668.54 $1,554,654.00 $1,529,985.46 1.59%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

59



Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

February
2019 Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$0.00 $24,668.54 $1,554,654.00 $1,529,985.46 1.59%

60



02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $806.00 $806.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $189.00 $189.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $450.00 $450.00 $1,000.00 $550.00 45.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $1,127.00 $1,427.00 $7,500.00 $6,073.00 19.03%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $35.00 $20,000.00 $19,965.00 0.18%

$1,577.00 $1,912.00 $43,495.00 $41,583.00 4.40%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $2,881.60 $8,580.88 $75,642.00 $67,061.12 11.34%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $216.12 $643.57 $5,673.00 $5,029.43 11.34%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $178.38 $531.18 $4,690.00 $4,158.82 11.33%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $41.72 $124.23 $1,097.00 $972.77 11.32%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $28.06 $37.74 $385.00 $347.26 9.80%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $350.00 $1,050.00 $8,400.00 $7,350.00 12.50%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $75.00 $1,500.00 $1,425.00 5.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $35.00 $250.00 $215.00 14.00%

$3,695.88 $11,077.60 $97,637.00 $86,559.40 11.35%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 -$1,651.40 $100.00 $1,751.40-1651.40%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 -$1,651.40 $2,100.00 $3,751.40 -78.64%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $1,828.80 $5,451.78 $48,004.00 $42,552.22 11.36%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $137.16 $408.88 $3,600.00 $3,191.12 11.36%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $113.11 $337.17 $2,976.00 $2,638.83 11.33%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $26.45 $78.85 $696.00 $617.15 11.33%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $18.99 $27.49 $1,540.00 $1,512.51 1.79%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $350.00 $1,050.00 $8,400.00 $7,350.00 12.50%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

$2,474.51 $7,354.17 $65,816.00 $58,461.83 11.17%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $150.00 $500.00 $350.00 30.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $137.72 $137.72 $2,000.00 $1,862.28 6.89%

$137.72 $287.72 $2,800.00 $2,512.28 10.28%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $2,121.60 $6,315.84 $55,692.00 $49,376.16 11.34%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $159.12 $473.69 $4,177.00 $3,703.31 11.34%
61



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $131.54 $391.58 $3,453.00 $3,061.42 11.34%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $30.76 $91.58 $808.00 $716.42 11.33%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $21.93 $31.61 $1,060.00 $1,028.39 2.98%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $335.17 $1,005.51 $8,398.00 $7,392.49 11.97%

ACCTING E 100-41530-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions $41.70 $41.70 $250.00 $208.30 16.68%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%

$2,841.82 $8,351.51 $77,338.00 $68,986.49 10.80%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 0.00%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $21,000.00 $21,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $21,000.00 $21,000.00 0.00%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $192.63 $192.63 $3,500.00 $3,307.37 5.50%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,340.58 $1,516.63 $4,000.00 $2,483.37 37.92%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

$1,533.21 $1,709.26 $19,200.00 $17,490.74 8.90%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $689.99 $1,084.98 $5,000.00 $3,915.02 21.70%

$689.99 $1,084.98 $5,000.00 $3,915.02 21.70%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $9.91 $9.91 $23,500.00 $23,490.09 0.04%

$9.91 $9.91 $23,500.00 $23,490.09 0.04%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $927.00 $927.00 $25,000.00 $24,073.00 3.71%

$927.00 $927.00 $25,000.00 $24,073.00 3.71%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $581.77 $581.77 $7,000.00 $6,418.23 8.31%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $250.00 $250.00 $525.00 $275.00 47.62%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $455.00 $455.00 $7,500.00 $7,045.00 6.07%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $414.44 $642.63 $6,400.00 $5,757.37 10.04%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $25.06 $500.00 $474.94 5.01%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $9,600.00 $9,600.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $834.60 $834.60 $5,000.00 $4,165.40 16.69%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $250.84 $504.59 $3,500.00 $2,995.41 14.42%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $259.24 $259.24 $2,000.00 $1,740.76 12.96%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$3,045.89 $3,552.89 $48,025.00 $44,472.11 7.40%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 0.00%Dept 41950 Engineer 62



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $43,000.00 $43,000.00 0.00%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 0.00%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $82,716.00 $82,716.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $82,716.00 $82,716.00 0.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $9,064.17 $18,128.34 $108,770.00 $90,641.66 16.67%

$9,064.17 $18,128.34 $108,770.00 $90,641.66 16.67%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $32,999.50 $61,000.00 $28,000.50 54.10%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $2,045.98 $3,782.00 $1,736.02 54.10%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $478.51 $885.00 $406.49 54.07%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $0.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $350.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $328.00 $1,500.00 $1,172.00 21.87%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $35,851.99 $85,817.00 $49,965.01 41.78%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $126.92 $126.92 $15,500.00 $15,373.08 0.82%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $240.24 $240.24 $1,500.00 $1,259.76 16.02%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $0.60 $0.60 $28,500.00 $28,499.40 0.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $361.23 $361.23 $5,000.00 $4,638.77 7.22%

$728.99 $728.99 $51,500.00 $50,771.01 1.42%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 0.00%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Serv $804.28 $804.28 $3,210.00 $2,405.72 25.06%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

$804.28 $804.28 $17,210.00 $16,405.72 4.67%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $12.80 $12.80 $4,500.00 $4,487.20 0.28%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $45.12 $45.12 $9,000.00 $8,954.88 0.50%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $0.00 $7,805.00 $7,805.00 0.00%

$57.92 $57.92 $22,305.00 $22,247.08 0.26%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $23.61 $23.61 $1,650.00 $1,626.39 1.43%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $5.39 $5.39 $7,500.00 $7,494.61 0.07%63



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $127.95 $127.95 $1,000.00 $872.05 12.80%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $589.04 $589.04 $3,000.00 $2,410.96 19.63%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$745.99 $745.99 $17,650.00 $16,904.01 4.23%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $0.00 $39,000.00 $39,000.00 0.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contr $0.00 $0.00 $11,602.00 $11,602.00 0.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $0.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $56,852.00 $56,852.00 0.00%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $1,057.95 $1,057.95 $50,000.00 $48,942.05 2.12%

$1,057.95 $1,057.95 $50,000.00 $48,942.05 2.12%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $250.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%

$250.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $6,081.41 $18,316.16 $138,997.00 $120,680.84 13.18%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $65.12 $2,000.00 $1,934.88 3.26%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $280.00 $14,580.00 $14,300.00 1.92%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $456.10 $1,378.58 $12,300.00 $10,921.42 11.21%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $361.99 $1,113.08 $11,072.00 $9,958.92 10.05%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $84.66 $260.33 $2,589.00 $2,328.67 10.06%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $64.27 $91.65 $2,535.00 $2,443.35 3.62%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $1,350.00 $4,000.76 $32,400.00 $28,399.24 12.35%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $540.00 $1,989.00 $2,500.00 $511.00 79.56%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels $908.08 $942.00 $7,000.00 $6,058.00 13.46%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies $448.59 $448.59 $7,500.00 $7,051.41 5.98%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $138.24 $138.24 $12,000.00 $11,861.76 1.15%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor $170.97 $170.97 $5,000.00 $4,829.03 3.42%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Serv $1,296.90 $1,296.90 $10,000.00 $8,703.10 12.97%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $483.13 $633.93 $4,200.00 $3,566.07 15.09%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-381 Electric Utilities $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities $1,141.30 $1,141.30 $5,000.00 $3,858.70 22.83%

$13,525.64 $32,266.61 $280,373.00 $248,106.39 11.51%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 0.00%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal
64



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 0.00%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,132.20 $2,132.20 $25,000.00 $22,867.80 8.53%

$2,132.20 $2,132.20 $25,000.00 $22,867.80 8.53%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,449.60 $3,449.60 $40,000.00 $36,550.40 8.62%

$3,449.60 $3,449.60 $40,000.00 $36,550.40 8.62%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $2,174.51 $2,174.51 $8,700.00 $6,525.49 24.99%

$2,174.51 $2,174.51 $8,700.00 $6,525.49 24.99%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $56.61 $56.61 $2,200.00 $2,143.39 2.57%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $90.00 $90.00 $8,000.00 $7,910.00 1.13%

$146.61 $146.61 $36,700.00 $36,553.39 0.40%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $4,599.82 $4,599.82 $11,500.00 $6,900.18 40.00%

$4,599.82 $4,599.82 $11,500.00 $6,900.18 40.00%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $1,400.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 -$1,600.00 0.00%

$1,400.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 -$1,600.00 0.00%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$57,070.61 $138,610.45 $1,554,654.00 $1,416,043.55 8.92%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

65



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

February
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6

02/14/19 3:10 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$57,070.61 $138,610.45 $1,554,654.00 $1,416,043.55 8.92%

66



 
 

 
City of Hanover 11250 5th St NE, Hanover, MN 55341 | (p) (763) 497-3777 (f) (763) 497-1873 | cityhall@ci.hanover.mn.us 
 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Re:  Medium Duty Truck Replacement 
 
Date:  February 14, 2019 
 
Staff is seeking direction from the City Council on how to proceed with Public Works Medium Duty 
Truck fleet.  Currently the City owns a 1-ton truck chassis with a dump box.  The intent is to 
replace/upgrade this truck to a larger vehicle.  The intent of the upgrade is to purchase a truck large enough 
to pull the mini-excavator without needing to use the snowplow or bucket truck, vehicles that far larger 
than needed for this task.  The other intent is to have a large enough medium duty vehicle to use as third 
piece of snow plowing equipment.  Mostly utilized for cul-de-sacs and parking lots.  The added dump box 
to the chassis will assist with snow removal from parking lots and hauling black dirt or other dry materials 
in the summer. 
 
Originally staff was looking at purchasing a Chevrolet Silverado 5500 Crew Cab.  The benefit to the crew 
cab would be allowing more that two employees to travel a longer distance comfortably.  In continuing to 
review the City’s needs and receiving input from other cities, it was determined that the crew cab in this 
size of medium duty vehicle may not accomplish the department’s biggest goals.  The biggest setback 
would be on overall vehicle length and losing mobility. 
 
Staff is recommending purchasing a Chevrolet Silverado 5500 Regular Cab Dually and build the chassis 
out with a storage compartment, dump box, and snow plow setup.  Estimated cost of the purchase would 
be $75,000.  Staff further recommends selling our existing Chevrolet Silverado 3500 Regular Cab Dually 
with a dump box to offset the replacement cost.  The revenue generate would depend on if it was dealer 
traded or sold outright on the private market.  One benefit to making the purchase at this time of year is 
we could hit the market at a time of year when landscaping companies could be looking for a vehicle of 
this nature with a dump box. 
 
A further option to consider, which would address the crew cab vehicle benefit, is to replace our existing 
Ford F-250 Regular Cab with a crew cab medium duty truck of the same relative size.  The replacement 
cost is estimated at $35,000.    Staff would then further recommend selling our existing Ford F-250 to 
offset the replacement cost.  The revenue generated would again depend on dealer trade or sold on private 
market. 
 
Staff is seeking direction prior to finalizing specs for quotes and bringing a resolution for consideration at 
the March 5, 2019 City Council Meeting. 

 
 

67


	ADPA8D7.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  February 14, 2019
	Re:  Review of February 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda

	02-19-19 Claims.pdf
	02-19-19 Payments for 2018
	02-19-19 Check Summary Register for 2018
	02-19-19 Cons for 2018
	02-19-19 Cash Balance 2018
	02-19-19 Revenue Budget by Service 2018
	02-19-19 Expenditure Budget by Service 2018
	02-19-19 Payments for 2019
	02-19-19 Check Summary Register for 2019
	02-19-19 Cons for 2019
	02-19-19 Cash Balance 2019
	02-19-19 Revenue Budget by Service 2019
	02-19-19 Expenditure Budget by Service 2019

	02-05-19  Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	ADP58F2.tmp
	Hanover Cove
	Slide Number 2
	Housing Examples and Locations – Large Lot Single Family �
	Housing Examples and Locations – Medium Lot Single Family
	Housing Examples and Locations – Large Lot Villa/Patio
	Housing Examples and Locations – �                                 Medium Lot Villa/Patio
	Housing Examples and Locations – Narrow Lot Villa/Patio�
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Architectural Requirements
	Home Owners Association Summary
	Development Example:  Miske Meadows
	Miske Meadows Architecture Examples
	Miske Meadows Architecture Examples
	Actual photos: Miske Meadows
	Common Concerns from Community Members
	Additional Concern – Parking
	Alignment with 2040 Comprehensive Plan
	Benefits of Hanover Cove
	Alternatives
	Questions?


	ADP8A1.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  February 14, 2019
	Re:  Review of February 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda




